

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSIPPI

**FILED**

MAY 16 2018

DAVID CREWS, CLERK  
BY Williams  
Deputy

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

v.

CRIMINAL NO. 3:18-cr-061  
18 U.S.C. § 2251  
18 U.S.C. § 2252

JEFFREY DEWAYNE HOPKINS

**INDICTMENT**

The grand jury charges that:

**Count One**

From or about April 5, 2017 through July 14, 2017, in the Northern District of Mississippi, JEFFREY DEWAYNE HOPKINS, defendant, did use a minor and attempt to use a minor to engage in sexually explicit conduct, being the lascivious exhibition of the minor's pubic area, for the purpose of producing visual depictions of such conduct, and which visual depictions were produced using materials that had been mailed, shipped, and transported in interstate commerce, all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2251(a) and 2251(e).

**Count Two**

From on or about July 2015 through on about April 11, 2018, in the Northern District of Mississippi, JEFFREY DEWAYNE HOPKINS, defendant, did knowingly receive and distribute computer files of visual depictions of minors engaging in sexually explicit conduct, which were produced by the use of minors engaging in sexually explicit conduct, using means and facilities in interstate and foreign commerce, that is Peer to Peer software and the Internet, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2252(a)(2).

**Count Three**

On about April 11, 2018, in the Northern District of Mississippi, JEFFREY DEWAYNE HOPKINS, defendant, did knowingly possess a computer containing videos and images of visual depictions of minors engaging in sexually explicit conduct, including visual depictions of minors who had not attained 12 years of age, which were produced by the use of minors engaging in sexually explicit conduct, the computer on which the computer files were produced having been shipped and transported in interstate and foreign commerce, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2252(a)(4)(B).

**A TRUE BILL**



---

**WILLIAM C. LAMAR**  
**UNITED STATES ATTORNEY**

*/s/signature redacted*

---

**FOREPERSON**

**RECEIVED**

**MAY 16 2018**

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSIPPI

**UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSIPPI**

**UNITED STATES OF AMERICA**

**v.**

**CRIMINAL NO. 3:18-cr- 061**

**18 U.S.C. § 2251**

**18 U.S.C. § 2252**

**JEFFREY DEWAYNE HOPKINS**

**NOTICE OF PENALTIES**

**COUNT ONE**

18 U.S.C. § 2251(a)

Not less than 15 years and no more than life incarceration  
Not more than a \$250,000 fine  
Not less than 5 years and up to life supervised release  
\$100 mandatory special assessment  
\$5,000 assessment

18 U.S.C. § 2252(e)  
18 U.S.C. § 3571  
18 U.S.C. § 3583(k)  
18 U.S.C. § 3013  
18 U.S.C. 3014

**COUNT TWO**

18 U.S.C. § 2252(a)(2)

Not less than 5 years and no more than life incarceration  
Not more than a \$250,000 fine  
Not less than 5 years and up to life supervised release  
\$100 mandatory special assessment  
\$5,000 assessment

18 U.S.C. § 2252(b)(1)  
18 U.S.C. § 3571  
18 U.S.C. § 3583(k)  
18 U.S.C. § 3013  
18 U.S.C. 3014

**COUNT THREE**

18 U.S.C. § 2252(a)(4)(B)

Not more than 20 years  
Not more than a \$250,000 fine  
Not less than 5 years and up to life supervised release  
\$100 mandatory special assessment  
\$5,000 assessment

18 U.S.C. § 2252(b)(2)  
18 U.S.C. § 3571  
18 U.S.C. § 3583(k)  
18 U.S.C. § 3013  
18 U.S.C. 3014

**CRIMINAL CASE COVER SHEET**

**U.S. DISTRICT COURT**  
Complete entire form

**Place of Offense:**

City Ripley  
County Tippah

**Related Case Information:**

Superseding Indictment \_\_\_\_\_ Case Number \_\_\_\_\_  
Same Defendant \_\_\_\_\_ New Defendant \_\_\_\_\_  
Magistrate Judge Case Number 3:18-MJ-024  
Search Warrant Case Number \_\_\_\_\_  
R20/R40 from District of \_\_\_\_\_  
Related Criminal Case Number \_\_\_\_\_



**Defendant Information:**

Juvenile:  Yes  No If yes, Matter to be sealed:  Yes  No  
Defendant Name Jeffrey DeWayne Hopkins  
Alias Name \_\_\_\_\_  
Address Ripley, MS  
DOB 1984 SS# \_\_\_\_\_ Sex Male Race White Nationality \_\_\_\_\_  
Represented by: \_\_\_\_\_  
Interpreter:  Yes  No List Language and/or dialect: \_\_\_\_\_

**Location Status:**

Arrest Date 4/25/2018  
 Already in Federal Custody as of 5/1/2018 (Date) in LCDC (Location)  
 Already in State Custody  
 On Pretrial Release

**U.S.C. Citations**

Total # of Counts 3  Petty  Misdemeanor  Felony  
Title & Section Description of Offense Charged Count(s)  
Set 1 18:2251 Sexual Exploitation of Children 1  
Set 2 18:2252 Sexual Exploitation of Minors 2, 3  
Set 3 \_\_\_\_\_  
Set 4 \_\_\_\_\_

**U.S. Attorney Information:**

AUSA Paul D. Roberts Bar # 5592  
Date: May 16, 2018 Signature of AUSA [Signature]

**District Court Case Number:**  
(To be entered by Clerk)

3:18CR061